FILED

SID J. WHITE

AUG 27 1990

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By

Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CHARLES LEWIS BURR,

\*

Appellant,

\*

vs.

\*

CASE NO. 71,234

STATE OF FLORIDA,

\*

Appellee.

\*

\*

---

---

ON REMAND FROM THE  
UNITED STATES SUPREME COURT

---

---

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT ON REMAND

STEVEN L. SELIGER  
16 North Adams Street  
Quincy, Florida 32351  
(904) 875-4668

Attorney for Mr. Burr

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

=====

I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

=====

A. Nature of the Case

This case is before this Court on remand from the United States Supreme Court, *Florida v. Burr*, \_\_\_U.S.\_\_\_, 110 S.Ct. 2608 (1990), of this Court's opinion vacating Mr. Burr's sentence of death and remanding to the trial court for further proceedings. *Burr v. State*, 550 So.2d 444 (Fla. 1989).

The prior opinion of this Court was in response to a directive from the United States Supreme Court to reconsider this Court's decision denying Mr. Burr's motion for post-conviction relief. *Burr v. State*, 518 So.2d 903 (Fla. 1987).

This is the fourth time this Court has considered this case.

B. Course of the Proceedings

Mr. Burr was indicted by a Leon County grand jury for the first-degree murder and robbery with a firearm of Steve Harty. On June 11, 1982, Mr. Burr was convicted as charged. Three days later, the trial jury recommended a life sentence for the first-degree murder proceeding.

On June 21, 1982, the trial court overrode the jury recommendation of life and sentenced Mr. Burr to death. Mr. Burr also received a 99-year sentence for the robbery conviction.

The convictions and sentences were appealed to this Court, *Burr v. State*, 466 So.2d 1051 (Fla. 1985), and affirmed. Rehearing was denied on April 26, 1985 and this Court issued its mandate on June 3, 1985.

A timely petition for writ of certiorari was filed in the United States Supreme Court and ultimately denied. *Burr v. Florida*, 474 U.S. 879 (1985).

Mr. Burr's case was considered by the Governor and Cabinet of Florida for executive clemency. Clemency was denied and the Governor signed a death warrant and scheduled an execution date for the week of October 22-29, 1987. The actual execution date was set for October 23, 1987.

Mr. Burr then filed a motion for post-conviction relief pursuant to Rule 3.850, Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure. The trial court denied this motion and, after staying the execution, this Court affirmed the denial. *Burr v. State*, 518 So.2d 903 (Fla. 1987). The United States Supreme Court granted certiorari and remanded in light of *Johnson v. Mississippi*, 487 U.S. 1201, 108 S.Ct. 1981 (1988).

This Court then determined that the death sentence should be vacated and remanded to the trial court for a new sentencing proceeding. Burr v. State, 550 So.2d 444, 446 (Fla. 1989). The State petitioned the United States Supreme Court to review this decision, which it did, remanding the case to this Court for reconsideration in light of Dowling v. U.S. Florida v. Burr, \_\_\_U.S.\_\_\_\_, 110 S.Ct. 2608 (1990).

C. Disposition in the Lower Tribunal

This case is on remand from the United States Supreme Court.

II. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

=====

The facts of this case are set out in this Court's opinion, Burr v. State, 466 So.2d 1051 (Fla. 1985), and 550 So.2d 444 (1989).

For purposes of this brief the relevant facts are contained in Mr. Burr's motion for post-conviction relief and subsequent memorandum of law, and the State's response.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT  
=====

This case is once again before this Court to determine whether it is affected by a decision issued by the United States Supreme Court after the judgment was entered in this matter. See R. Stern, E. Gressman and S. Shapiro, *Supreme Court Practice*, Section 5.12, p. 279 (6th ed. 1986).

The issue on remand is the effect of *Dowling v. United States*, 493 U.S. \_\_\_\_ (1990), on the continuing validity of Mr. Burr's death sentence. *Dowling* permits, under Rule 404(b), Federal Rules of Evidence, in the guilt-innocence phase in a federal prosecution, the use of information pertaining to a crime for which the defendant has previously been acquitted. *Dowling* does not address the issue of whether such evidence can be used to provide the evidentiary foundation to support a death sentence.

In addition, it is time for this Court to recognize that Mr. Burr, based on the facts contained in this record, does not deserve a sentence of death.

ARGUMENT

=====

DOWLING V. UNITED STATES IS  
INAPPOSITE TO THE CONSTITUTIONAL  
REQUIREMENT OF AN ACCURATE AND  
RELIABLE DEATH SENTENCE PROCEEDING.

A.

" . . . Dowling sheds absolutely no light on the question whether a post-trial acquittal should render collateral evidence inadmissible at a sentencing hearing in a capital case." Florida v. Burr, \_\_\_ U.S. \_\_\_, 110 S.Ct. 2608, 2612 (1990) (Stevens, J. dissenting).

Dowling v. United States, 493 U.S. \_\_\_, 110 S.Ct. 668 (1990) dealt with the admissibility, under Rule 404(b), Federal Rules of Evidence, of testimony pertaining to a crime for which Dowling had already been found acquitted. In 1985, Dowling was arrested and ultimately convicted for armed robbery of a bank. During this robbery, Dowling wore a ski mask. Two weeks after this bank robbery, a woman named Vera Henry reported that a ski-masked Dowling had attempted to rob her in her home. Ms. Henry identified Dowling as the robber as a result of her unmasking him during the robbery. Mr. Dowling was tried and found not guilty of this crime.

The United States called Ms. Henry to testify as a

witness in the bank robbery case. The district court admitted the testimony under Rule 404(b). This rule reads:

OTHER CRIMES, WRONGS, OR ACTS. Evidence of other crimes, wrongs or acts is not admissible to prove the character of a person in order to show that he acted in conformity therewith. It may, however, be admissible for other purposes, such as proof of motive, plan, knowledge, identity or absence of mistake or accident.

Ms. Henry's testimony was admitted for two purposes. "First, [the government] believed that Henry's description of Dowling as wearing a mask and carrying a gun similar to the mask and gun carried by the robber of the [bank] strengthened the Government's identification of Dowling as the bank robber." The second purpose had to do with tying Dowling to another person allegedly involved in both robberies.

After Ms. Henry testified and again during final instructions, the trial judge told the jury that Dowling had been acquitted of the Henry robbery.

The United States Supreme Court ultimately upheld the admissibility of Ms. Henry's testimony. It did so because of the general proposition "that an acquittal in a criminal case does not preclude the government from relitigating an issue when it is presented in a subsequent action governed by a lower standard of proof." Dowling v.

U.S., 110 S.Ct. at 672, citing *Huddleston v. U.S.*, 485 U.S. 681, 688 (1988).

In addition, that Court held that it was not "fundamentally unfair" to admit Ms. Henry's testimony, "especially in light of the limiting instructions provided by the trial judge . . ." *Dowling*, 110 S.Ct. at 674.

The similar fact evidence in Mr. Burr's case was introduced to establish his identity. It was not introduced in support of any aggravating circumstance. Contrary to the *Dowling* case, the jury did not have the benefit of an instruction telling them that Mr. Burr had been acquitted of the Lloyd Lee robbery and attempted murder.

B.

Mr. Burr's case raises a significantly different issue. Simply put, the question is whether unadjudicated criminal conduct can be the evidentiary basis for imposing a death sentence. The answer is no.

*Furman v. Georgia*, 408 U.S. 238, 313 (1972) determined that the death penalty was not constitutional because there was "no meaningful basis for distinguishing" people who got death sentence from those who did not. The Florida response was to create a list of aggravating circumstances, the presence of one or more of these circumstances presumptively

sufficient to support a death sentence. Any one of these factors must be established beyond a reasonable doubt. In Mr. Burr's case, "the trial judge found as aggravating circumstances that the murder was committed to avoid arrest, that it was committed during the course of a robbery, and that it was committed in a cold, calculated and premeditated manner without any pretense of moral or legal justification." Burr v. State, 550 So.2d 444, 446 (Fla. 1989).

This Court has previously determined that "there was no evidence of two of the three aggravating factors other than the collateral crimes evidence." In a footnote to this statement, the Court left open the question "on the issue of the weight, if any, evidence of collateral acts should be given in proving the aggravating circumstances in a particular case." Burr v. State, 550 So.2d 444, 446, note 1 (Fla. 1989). It seems apparent that this Court should now address this issue.

C.

The record in this case is clear that the cold, calculated aggravator cannot be proven beyond a reasonable doubt. Burr v. State, 550 So.2d 444, 446 note 2 (Fla. 1989), citing Burr v. State, 518 So.2d 903, 907-908 (Fla.

1987)(Barkett, J. dissenting). Rogers v. State, 511 So.2d 526, 533 (Fla. 1987) requires that the State must prove "heightened premeditation" in that the murder was accomplished in a 'calculated' manner." Eutsy v. State, 541 So.2d 1143, 1147 (Fla. 1989).

The medical examiner testimony is decidedly insufficient. There was no other direct evidence as to how the murder at the convenience store occurred. The trial judge did not identify in the record why this aggravator was appropriate, instead stating enigmatically: "The murder of Stephen Harty was committed in a cold, calculated and premeditated manner without any pretense of moral or legal justification. Of this, can there be any doubt?" To the contrary, the record is completely silent on any evidence distinguishing this killing from any ordinary murder.

Similarly, the arrest avoidance aggravator was not established in this case.

This particular factor requires clear proof beyond a reasonable doubt that the killing's dominant or only motive was the elimination of a witness. Riley v. State, 336 So.2d 19 (Fla. 1978); Menendez v. State, 368 So.2d 1278, 1282 (Fla. 1979).

Rogers v. State, 511 So.2d 526, 533 (Fla. 1987).

In determining whether the State has proven the aggravator, the trial judge may not "[presume] this intent

based solely on the circumstances of the murder. . . "

Rogers, at 533. Further, the facts the victim offered no resistance and because he was the only eyewitness "do not require a finding that the victim was killed to avoid arrest." Griffin v. State, 474 So.2d 777, 781 (Fla. 1985). As in Griffin, (also a convenience store robbery), there is no direct evidence as to why Burr killed Harty. Perry v. State, 522 So.2d 817, 820 (Fla. 1988). Neither is there any evidence that Hardy knew or recognized Burr. Compare Hardy v. State, 529 So.2d 1083, 1087 (Fla. 1988) where the defendants knew the victims and there was specific discussion that the victims had to die to avoid identifying the defendants; and Remeta v. State, 522 So.2d 825, 828-829 (Fla. 1988), where the defendant's statement that he "took the witness out" was sufficient to establish an aggravating factor.

Essentially, the trial judge extrapolated from the similar fact evidence "that the pattern of [Burr] shooting store clerks during the commission of robberies exhibited an intent to eliminate witnesses." Burr v. State, 466 So.2d 1051, 1054 (Fla. 1985).

The danger of permitting aggravating factors to be proven in this manner is demonstrated by Justice Barkett.

Under this novel approach,  
aggravating factors could be  
proved merely by showing that

**PAGE(S) MISSING**

they existed in collateral crimes committed by the accused, whether or not they actually existed in the crime charged in the indictment.

Burr v. State, 518 So.2d 903, 908 (Fla. 1987), cert. granted, 487 U.S. 1201 (1988).

D.

Above all else, the United States Supreme Court has required that the information used in the death sentencing process be accurate and reliable. Johnson v. Mississippi, 486 U.S. 578 (1988). Permitting the use of information which later proves to be unreliable results in constitutionally unacceptable capriciousness being injected into the process.

CONCLUSION

=====

Dowling should not alter this Court's latest pronouncement in Mr. Burr's case. Unreliable information should not be permitted to infect the procedure for selecting which convicted capital offenders are to be executed.

The facts of Mr. Burr's case support this Court's intention in imposing a life sentence.



STEVEN L. SELIGER  
16 North Adams Street  
Quincy, Florida 32351  
(904) 875-4668