IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA



SEP 17 1990

By Deputy Clerk

CHARLES LEWIS BURR,

Appellant,

v.

CASE NO. 71,234

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON REMAND FROM THE UNITED STATES SUPREME COURT

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE ON REMAND

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

CAROLYN M. SNURKOWSKI ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR NO. 158541

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

Supplemental briefing was ordered by the Florida Supreme Court and further oral argument set to discuss the applicability of Johnson v. Mississippi, supra, to the instant case. On August 31, 1989, in Burr v. State, 550 So.2d 444 (Fla. 1989), the Florida Supreme Court vacated the death sentence and remanded the cause to the trial court for a new sentencing determination without the need for a new jury to be empaneled. Because the jury recommended a life sentence, the Florida Supreme Court remanded to the trial court to reconsider the aggravating circumstances versus any mitigating circumstances without the influence of the similar fact evidence. The State sought rehearing asserting that the similar fact evidence was not

admitted in violation of Johnson v. Mississippi, supra, and also asserted that the underlying facts of the robbery for which an acquittal resulted were properly before the trial court at sentencing. Rehearing was denied November 15, 1989, without opinion.

On February 13, 1990, the State filed its petition for writ of certiorari to the Supreme Court of Florida in the United States Supreme Court, asserting:

On remand from this Court in Burr v. Florida,

U.S. ____, 108 S.Ct. 2840, 101 L.Ed.2d

878 (1988), the Florida Supreme Court erroneously applied Johnson v. Mississippi,

U.S. ____, 108 S.Ct. 1981, 100 L.Ed.2d

525 (1988), in vacating the death sentence and ordering a new sentencing proceeding.

On June 11, 1990, the United States Supreme Court granted the State's petition for writ of certiorari and "the judgment is vacated and the case is remanded to the Supreme Court of Florida for further consideration in light of Dowling v. United States, 493 U.S. ____ (1990). Florida v. Burr, ____ U.S. ____, 110 S.Ct. 2608 (1990).

On August 1, 1990, this Court set forth a briefing schedule on remand from the United States Supreme Court in the instant cause.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The following testimony was adduced at the trial held June 9 and 10, 1982:

Domita Williams identified Burr as the man who picked her up at her house at about 6:30 a.m. in order to take her to work on August 20, 1981. (R 830). By that date, Williams and Charlie

Burr had been going together for two or three weeks and were talking of marriage. (R 832, 856). Burr went inside Williams' house and fifteen or twenty minutes later, or shortly before 7:00 a.m., the couple left the house on Mount Sinai Road, heading towards Tallahassee on Highway 27. (R 833-834). About 7:00 a.m., Burr pulled into the parking lot of a Suwannee Swifty convenience store and waited until Williams went inside. Williams knew the victim, who was the store clerk, as 834). "Steve" because she had stopped at this convenience store before. (R 834). No one besides the clerk was in the convenience store while she and Burr were there, and no one was in the parking lot (R 835). About five or ten minutes later, Williams came out of the store with a cheeseburger and Kit-Kat candy bar she had purchased. (R 834, 850). Burr then got out of the car and went inside the store. (R 835). Williams began eating her sandwich. She could see the upper part of Burr and the victim from the car. (R 836). After hearing a gunshot, she looked p and saw Burr but not the victim. (R 836, 837, 852, 853). then returned to the car, smiling. Williams was crying because "he [Burr] had shot Steve" and she had "never witnessed anything like that before . . . " (R 837). Burr asked Williams what was wrong. Williams testified that Burr was wearing blue jeans and a "Master Red" shirt at the time (R 838), and further identified State's exhibit number one as being Burr's shirt. Williams noticed a pistol-type handgun imprint in Burr's pocket. (R 838).

Williams further testified that after the incident at the convenience store, she and Burr drove to an apartment where Burr was staying with Katrine Jackson and her family. (R 840). Williams sat down and told Katrine Jackson and Tanny Footman, a cousin of Williams, who were present at the apartment, what had happened at the store and what she had seen. (R 840).

Subsequent to the apartment visit, Williams was taken to work at Sunland by Burr and once there, she told her supervisor, Katherine Haygood, about the incident at the store, but she did not tell the truth about what happened. (R 8410. Williams never contacted the police. (R 842). Williamls worked at Sunland August 20 and 21. (R 842). On August 21, she and Burr drove to Melbourne in his car. (R 843). Before they left, Burr picked up a cardboard box containing about twenty-five handguns. (R 844). Williams was present when Bur subsequently sold these handguns in Melbourne. (R 844).

Williams specifically stated that she did not drive her mother to work on August 20, 1981, and that her mother had driven her own car to work on that day. (R 845). She also testified that someone, not named at the time, had tried to get her to change her testimony, but that her testimony before the jury was true. (R 845).

On cross examination, it was established that Williams was afraid of Burr and apparently feared for her baby. (R 856, 857). Williams denied telling her mother or anyone else that she had lied in her statement to Sgt. Charlie Ash, an investigator with the Sheriff's Department, and that her mother was lying about August 20, 1981. (R 858-861).

On redirect examination, Williams explained her fear of Burr and testified that he did not run out of the store after the shooting, nor did he drive away rapidly from the store. (R 863).

Kim Miller, a regular customer, testified next. He stopped at the Suwannee Swifty at about 7:00 a.m., on August 20, 1981, and found the body of Stephen Harty, the clerk, lying over an open safe. (R 866, 871). He dialed the 911 emergency number at 7:09 or 7:10 a.m. (R 868). He identified State's exhibit number two as being a photo of the victim in the condition he found him. The crime scene was not disturbed prior to the authorities arriving. (R 867).

Robert Bailey, a paramedic, responded to Kim Miller's 911 call, and discovered the victim to have a bullet wound behind the left ear and determined him to be dead. The victim appeared to be on his knees. (R 871). Miller's call came in at 7:09 a.m. (R 870).

Deputy Ray Wood secured the area thereafter and did not allow the area to be disturbed. (R 874).

Johnny McCord, a supervisor for Suwannee Swifty, testified that \$252.75 was missing from the store's register and safe. (R 877, 878).

Bill Gunter, a crime scene technician, described the store for the jury via photographs. (R 881, 882). He also identified State's exhibit number five as being bullet fragments removed from the victim's head. He received those from Dr. Wood during the autopsy. (R 887-889).

Charlie Ash, Jr., an investigator with the Leon County Sheriff's Office, testified that he arrested Burr on September 29, 1981, after conducting an investigation. He also recovered Burr's "Master Red" shirt from Domita Williams. (R 903).

Sam Bruce, another sheriff's investigator, recovered two .22 caliber bullets from the apartment where Burr was staying prior to his arrest. (R 905-906). Burr's counsel stipulated to the admissibility of the bullets. (R 908, 909). Donna Cormier testified only in order to provide the chain of custody of the "Master Red" shirt and it was admitted into evidence. (R 910).

Don Champagne, a firearms examiner for the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, testified that the fragments removed from the victim's head were the remains of a .22 caliber bullet. (R 913). The fragments were entered into evidence. (R 914).

Katrine Jackson verified Domita Williams' prior testimony. On August 20, 1981, Williams came to the apartment and was tense and nervous. Burr acted abnormally later in the day. told her about what she had seen happen at the store earlier that Jackson allowed officers to search Burr's morning. (R 921-922). room on September 29, 1981. (R 921. 922). On cross examination, however, Jackson testified that Williams had not told her that she had been at the convenience store with Burr. (R 923). first indication that the trial would taken unexpected paths occurred at this point; Jackson's testimony surprised the prosecutor. (R 924-956). Jackson eventually took the stand again and admitted she lied on cross examination. (R 956-957).

Jackson then testified that Williams did tellher about what Burr did at the convenience store the morning of August 20, 1981. (R 957-958).

Dr. Thomas Woods' deposition ws read to the jury by agreement. Dr. Woods performed the autopsy on Steve Harty, the victim. (R 964). He found a bullet wound behind the left ear. (R 965). The autopsy revealed that the shot was fired from close range and that the gun's relative position to the victim's head, slightly to the left, and probably pointed downward somewhat. (R 966). Death was rapid and no purposeful motion on the part of the victim would have been likely after the shot was fired. (R 967-968). Dr. Woods' findings were consistent with the victim being shot while on the floor. (R 969).

At this point in the trial, the similar fact evidence was proffered and deemed admissible by the trial court. (R 975-1042).

Emil Farrell worked at a Majik Market convenience store in Palm Bay, which is in the vicinity of Melbourne. (R 1050). On Saturday evening, August 22, 1981, he got a phone call at home from someone asking him who was working at the store the next morning. (R 978). Farrell replied that he was. The next morning, Sunday, August 23, Farrell received another phone call asking who was working. He again said he was. (R 1051).

At about 8:00 a.m., Burr went into Farrell's store and stood by the microwave until the store was empty. He approached Farrell and asked him if his name ws Farrell. When Farrell said yes, Burr asked him if he had ever seen him. Farrell said no.

Burr then pulled out a gun and said, "I'm going to kill you. Open the register." (R 1051, 1052). Burr had brought several items to the register area prior to pulling the gun. (R 1052). He told Farrell two more times to open the register. Without getting any money and without any provocation on Farrell's part, Burr shot Farrell twice with a small caliber gun. (R 1052-1053, 1060).

with Burr still inside the store, Farrell ran outside and asked a customer, who had just driven up, for help. (R 1055). The man fled and Burr ran out of the store, jumped into a rather small, old blue or green car, and left. (R 1058). This occurred three days after the Harty murder. Farrell identified Burr from among many photographs shown to him. (R 1056, 1057).

James Griffin worked in a Majik Market convenience store in Port Malabar, also near Melbourne, Florida. (R 1061). Griffin was preparing for clean-up late in the evening on August 28, 1981, and was by himself in the store when Burr came in. (R 1061-1062). Burr pulled out a small caliber handgun and said, "Give me all your money and don't be a fool." (R 1063). After Griffin had given him the money, Burr stepped back and shot Griffin once in the abdomen. Griffin said he "would get him for this" and turned. Burr than shot him in the left elbow and left in a brown or maroon car. (R 1063, 1065). This occurred eight days after the Farrell shooting.

Lloyd Lee worked in a 7-11 convenience store in Melbourne. About midnight on September 8, 1981 (twelve days after the Harty murder), Lee was alone in the store. Burr came in, picked up

some items, and came to the cash register. (R 1069-1070). As Lee rang up the items, Burr pretended to reach for a wallet, but pulled a small caliber gun instead. (R 1069-1070). After getting the money, he told Lee to "be cool", then turned to leave. He turned back, however, and shot Lee twice. (R 1070). The shooting was without provocation. (R 1071). Burr walked rapidly away. (R 1072). Lee identified him from hundreds of photographs. (R 1073). The State rested. (R 1076).

The defense's case began with testimony from a series of customers who arrived at the Suwannee Swifty store on August 20, 1981, from shortly after 7:00 a.m. until approximately 7:10 a.m. all saw Steve Harty alive.

Clarence Lohman arrived about 6:50 a.m. and left right after 7:00 a.m. (R 1078). As he was leaving, two other cars drove up. (R 1078). Vincent Prichard drove up around 7:00 a.m. As he left the store, he saw a black man wearing glasses walk towards the store, stop, then walk away. (R 1082-1083). A tall young man drove up as Prichard drove off. (R 1083). Although Prichard drove away, two minutes later he drove past the store, after he had picked up some men. (R 1086). As he drove by, he saw Kim Miller, a friend of his, pull into the parking lot of the store. (R 1086).

John Thompson pulled into the store about six minutes after 7:00 a.m. and parked next to a blue Ford. (R 1102). When he went inside, he saw Harty, who was acting unusual, as if he had something else on his mind. (R 1106). Another man, not resembling Burr, stood at the back of the store by the cooler.

(R 1109). He acted suspiciously, like he was just passing time. (R 1116).

Minnie Pompey, Domita Williams' mother, testified that on August 20th, Williams drove her to work about 6:30 a.m. (R 1156). Pompey worked at a day care center about a 20-minute drive from where she lived, and that morning, Pompey punched in a 6:56 a.m. (R 1157). Williams stayed for a few minutes to put her child into the center, and about five or ten minutes after 7:00 a.m., she started on the 20-minute trip back home. (R 1158).

Shortly after 7:00 a.m., Ruth Grant and her daughter, Valerie, were heading west toward Florida State University along Highway 27. They passed the Suwannee Swifty and saw several police cars there. (R 1194). A short time later, they saw an ambulance heading towards the Suwannee Swifty and, seconds later, Domita Williams, a relative of theirs, passed, also apparently heading home. (R 1195).

Domita Williams then took the stand for the defense and recanted her previous testimony. (R 1266-1286). She testified that August 20, 1981, was the first day she had to report to work at the Sunland Training Center in Tallahassee. (R 1269). Because she did not have a car of her own, she drove her mother to work so she could use her mother's car. (R 1269). As she returned home, she passed by the Suwannee Swifty store and saw several police cars there. (R 1270). She was at work by 9:00 a.m., and about 5:00 p.m., she saw Burr and he stayed with her that evening. (R 1271-1272).

On cross examination, the following was revealed:

Williams disputed that she had ever told Katherine Haygood, her supervisor, that she had been in the Suwannee Swifty the morning of the robbery/murder (R 1136, 1137; compare to 1286-1288); she admitted her mother was pressuring her to change her testimony (R 1288); she never saw the ambulance Ruth and Valerie Grant claimed they saw at the same time they saw Domita in her mother's case (R 1289); she admitted that when she gave her original statement to Charlie Ash, she knew Katrine Jackson and Tammy Footman had previously given statements (R 1290-1291); she could not explain the "cheeseburger store" away . . . how it cropped up in everyone's statements (R 1292-1294); she was aware that "[m]urder, you get the chair" and "[p]erjury, I don't know what you can get" (R 1294); she admitted to saying threats were made when she gave her testimony (where no threats were made) was consistent with her statement (R 1296, 1297); she acknowledged that her grand jury testimony (where no threats were made) was the same (R 1297-1298); she acknowledged discussing her expected trial testimony with the prosecutor the Friday before the trial (where no threats were made) and it was the same (R 1298-1299); she acknowledged that Mr. Meggs had never threatened her or acted mean to her (R 1299); she verified that although Mr. Modesitt used strong language, Mr. Meggs only emphasized "the importance of telling the truth" (R 1302); she stated that "after [she] found out they didn't have any evidence against [Burr]", that at that point she decided to "tell the truth" (R 1203-1304); that Meggs calmed her down and she agreed that her original

statement was true (R 1304-1305); she told Mr. Meggs that she was scared and people were trying to persuade her to change her testimony and Mr. Modesitt apologized to her (R 1305); she acknowledged that she received a call from defense counsel after her original trial testimony and but for that call she did not "think" she would have returned and recanted her original testimony (R 1307); she emphasized once again that she was scared of Burr, for herself, and for her baby (R 1307, 1308); and she denied ever discussing the Suwannee Swifty incident in the presence of Burr and Darrell Footman (R 1309; compare to 1140-1144).

Leola Powell testified as the first rebuttal witness. She saw Burr's car at Williams' house between 6:30 a.m. and 7:00 a.m. on August 20, 1981. (R 1335). At 7:45 a.m., the car was gone. (R 1336, 1337).

Tammy Footman's testimony was proffered because it agreed that she had heard the previous days' testimony, but not Williams' recantation. (R 1320, 1322, 1324, 1325, 1342, 1352). Burr's counsel suggested the proffer and at its conclusion, admitted the testimony was "along the lines of her statement". (R 1325, 1351). Footman was allowed to testify and in the process verified Katrine Jackson's prior testimony and specifically stated that Williams told her the "cheeseburger store" the morning of the incident. (R 1357, 1358-1361).

Ray Wood testified that the ambulance was already at the Suwannee Swifty when he arrived at 7:21 a.m. on the morning of the robbery/murder and that no ropes were strung until at least 7:30 a.m. (R 1367-1369).

Charlie Ash was recalled and imparted the details of his investigation. (R 1370-1373). He knew Williams had information after talking with Katrine Jackson and Tammy Footman, but he never told Williams what they had stated. (R 1376-1378). Williams' mother was hostile (R 1375), and he got no response fromher whenhe asked how she knew if her daughter knew something about the Suwannee Swifty incident. (R 1374, 1375). Ash denied ever threatening Domita Williams. (R 1375). The taped interview he conducted with Williams was played for the jury for the purpose of determining the atmosphere of that statement. (R 1382, 1386). The State rested and all testimony concluded.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Dowling v. United States, 493 U.S. ____, 100 S.Ct. 668 (1990), authorizes the use of similar fact evidence in the instant case. The Court's erroneous conclusion that said admissions were error, albeit harmless, must be corrected. Since the similar fact evidence was admissible, the trial court, the sentencer, properly considered this evidence at both the guilt and penalty phases of Burr's capital murder trial.

ARGUMENT

DOWLING v. UNITED STATES, 493 U.S. ___, 110 S.Ct. 668 (1990), SUPPORTS THE STATE TRIAL COURT'S DETERMINATION THAT THE SIMILAR FACT EVIDENCE PRESENTED IN BURR'S CASE WAS PROPERLY ADMITTED

In Burr v. State, 550 So.2d 444, 446 (Fla. 1989), the court concluded:

. . Evidence of the collateral act for acquittal which Burr received an inadmissible Johnson. under However, considering that evidence of the collateral act was in addition to other evidence of guilt, we believe its admission, though erroneous, was harmless, that the error did not contribute to Burr's conviction State v. DiGuilio, 491 So.2d in this case. 1129 (Fla. 1986).

Similar fact evidence does not require a conviction or an acquittal in order to permit the use of that evidence. v. United States, 493 U.S. ____, 110 S.Ct. ____, 107 L.Ed.2d 708 (1990) (collateral estoppel does not bar the use of evidence simply because it relates to alleged criminal conduct for which a defendant has been acquitted). See also Huddleston v. United States, 485 U.S. ____, 99 L.Ed.2d 771 (1988) (similar fact evidence may be admitted, "if there is sufficient evidence to support a finding by the jury that the defendant committed the similar act"). In Johnson v. Mississippi, supra, the court, in considering the propriety of the death penalty based on evidence "conviction", emphasized the distinction between an aggravating factor supported by a subsequent invalidated "conviction", rather than an aggravating factor supported by the underlying conduct giving rise to the conviction. The court held that evidence of the underlying conduct may be considered by the sentencing authority even when the conviction itself may not.

Johnson v. Mississippi, 108 S.Ct. at 1986, citing Zant v.

Stephens, 462 U.S. 862, 887, n.24 (1983).

In Burr v. State, 518 So.2d 903 (Fla. 1987), an overturned conviction was not the basis upon which the death penalty was bottomed. Rather, similar fact evidence presented in the guilt portion of Burr's trial established information upon which the trial court could look to in ascertaining whether the murder constituted the aggravating factor of cold, calculated and premeditated. See Burr v. State, 518 So.2d at 905. Justice Shaw's opinion concurring in result only, and §921.141(1), Fla.Stat. (1981).

Evidence regarding Burr's criminal acts was proffered and deemed admissible by the trial court at the guilt phase of Burr's That evidence was presented to show common-scheme, modus operandi and identity of Burr as the culprit in the instant robbery/murder case. At the penalty phase, the State presented no additional evidence in aggravation. The State made no further mention of the similar fact evidence admitted at trial during the guilt phase. Rather, defense counsel made the only references to the similar fact evidence during his closing remarks. references to the jury were to disregard the State's introduction of other crimes presented because, at trial, the State "would have prosecuted Burr for those crimes had they had sufficient Pursuant to Dowling v. United States, supra, the use of similar fact evidence at the guilt portion of Burr's trial was proper. Equally, reliance on that evidence was proper at the

penalty phase. Here, as in all admissions of similar fact evidence, the State was required to demonstrate facts and evidence sufficient to support a conclusion that Burr committed other acts or misconduct. As evidenced by the penalty phase transcript, none of the aggravating factors utilized to support the death penalty were singularly premised on the similar fact evidence. See, however, Justice Barkett's dissenting opinion, Burr v. State, 518 So.2d at 907-908.

In Burr v. State, 550 So.2d at 446, the court observed:

. . . The evidence that Burr had committed crimes similar in nature and method to the crime he was alleged to have committed in this case was relevant to establish identity Burr, 466 So.2d at 1053. conviction for other crimes, wrongs or acts, never been a prerequisite for the admission of evidence of those acts, so long as the evidence is relevant to some issue than bad character or propensity. §90.404(2)(a), Fla.Stat. (1981). Therefore, it is not relevant during the guilt phase that the convictions were not obtained against Burr for the other three crimes. Evidence of the collateral act for which Burr received an acquittal is inadmissible under Johnson. However, considering that this collateral act evidence of addition to other evidence of guilt, believe its admission, though erroneous, was harmless.

This determination of error occurred because, subsequent to Burr's trial (similar fact evidence was admitted), Burr was acquitted of one of the robberies and the State nolle prossed another, leaving only one conviction. The court, in Burr, 550 So.2d at 446, reasoned that, albeit the admission of similar fact evidence at the guilt phase was harmless error beyond a reasonable doubt, the court could not say "beyond a reasonable

doubt, that the consideration of this evidence did not contribute to the sentence, particularly in light of the jury's recommendation of life." The court further concluded:

We reject the notion that the one instance of collateral conduct for which Burr was acquitted was merely cumulative of the other two instances presented at trial. We have no way to determine the weight given each testimony. witnesses' As the reviewing court, it is not our function to weigh the credibility of each witness, but rather, it is that of the trial judge. Nor can we determine whether the one improperly admitted of collateral conduct determinative of the outcome.

550 So.2d at 446.

As evidenced by the United States Supreme Court's decision in Dowling v. United States, supra, (and remand to this Court based on that decision), it is clear in the first instance this Court misapplied Johnson v. Mississippi, supra, thus finding the admission of similar fact evidence, which resulted acquittal, error, albeit harmless error, as to quilt. Mississippi, supra, was never intended to undercut availability or use of similar fact evidence either at trial or at the penalty phase with regard to evidence in support of statutory aggravating circumstances or negate tendered to mitigating evidence. Indeed, other courts have recognized and appreciated the dichotomy herein set forth. For example, in Richardson v. Johnson, 864 F.2d 1536, 1541-1542 (11th Cir. 1989), that court, in reviewing a challenge as to effective assistance of counsel, observed:

. . . Even if the sentencing judge could not rely on these North Carolina convictions because they were unconstitutionally

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